
 Agenda

Page 1

Cabinet Member for City Services

Time and Date
3.00 pm on Monday, 29th January 2018

Place
Committee Room 3 - Council House

Public Business

1. Apologies  

2. Declarations of Interests  

3. Minutes  (Pages 5 - 6)

(a) To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 6th November 2017  

(b) Matters Arising  

4. Petition - Request for Road Safety Measures for Alderminster Road  
(Pages 7 - 14)

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

To consider the above petition, bearing 466 signatures (430 paper and 36 e-
signatures) which has been submitted by Councillor J Lepoidevin, a 
Woodlands Ward Councillor who has been invited to the meeting for the 
consideration of this item

5. Petition - To Request that Coventry Council Landscape the Land at 
Whitley Common/ JLR Bridge over A444  (Pages 15 - 20)

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

To consider the above petition, bearing 111 e-signatures which is being 
supported by Councillor R Bailey, a Cheylesmore Ward Councillor, who has 
been invited to the meeting for the consideration of this item along with the 
petition organiser

Public Document Pack



Page 2

6. Petition - Refurbishment of Roads and Pavements on Delaware Road  
(Pages 21 - 26)

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

To consider the above petition, bearing 18 signatures which has been 
submitted by Councillor Taylor, an Earlsdon Ward Councillor, who has been 
invited to the meeting for the consideration of this item along with the petition 
organiser

7. Petition - CCTV to be Installed at Lentons Lane Cemetery  (Pages 27 - 32)

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

To consider the above petition, bearing 474 e-signatures. Councillor P 
Seaman, a Henley Ward Councillor and the petition organiser has been invited 
to the meeting for the consideration of this matter.

8. Objections to Proposed Waiting Restrictions (Variation 5)  (Pages 33 - 58)

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

Note: The objectors and the respondents have been invited to the meeting for 
the consideration of this item.

Cllr Birdi, a Bablake Ward Councillor, who submitted a petition bearing 130 
signatures objecting to the proposed parking restrictions in Brackenhurst Road 
has also been invited to the meeting along with the petition organiser.     

9. Temporary Hackney Carriage Vehicle Plate/Licence(s)  (Pages 59 - 64)

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

10. Petitions Determined by Letter and Petitions Deferred Pending Further 
Investigations  (Pages 65 - 72)

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

11. Outstanding Issues  

There are no outstanding issues for consideration

12. Any other items of Public Business  

Any other items of public business which the Cabinet Member decides to take 
as matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved

Private Business
Nil

Martin Yardley, Deputy Chief Executive (Place), Council House, Coventry
Friday, 19 January 2018



Page 3

Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Liz 
Knight / Michelle Salmon, Governance Services Officers, Tel: 024 7683 3072 / 3065, 
Email: liz.knight@coventry.gov.uk / michelle.salmon@coventry.gov.uk

Membership: Councillors J Innes (Cabinet Member) and R Lakha (Deputy Cabinet 
Member)

By invitation: Councillors T Sawdon (Shadow Cabinet Member)

Please note: a hearing loop is available in the committee rooms

If you require a British Sign Language interpreter for this meeting 
OR if you would like this information in another format or 
language please contact us.

Liz Knight / Michelle Salmon
Governance Services Officers 
Tel: 024 7683 3072 / 3065
Email: liz.knight@coventry.gov.uk / michelle.salmon@coventry.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



– 1 –

Coventry City Council
Minutes of the Meeting of Cabinet Member for City Services held at 3.00 pm on 

Monday, 6 November 2017

Present: 
Members: Councillor J Innes (Cabinet Member)

Councillor R Lakha (Deputy Cabinet Member)
Councillor T Sawdon (Shadow Cabinet Member)

Other Members: Councillor G Williams 

Employees (by Directorate): 
Place C Archer, R Parkes, M Salmon, K Seager, C Whitehouse

Apologies: There were no apologies  

Public Business

24. Declarations of Interests 

There were no disclosable pecuniary interests made.

25. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 18th September 2017 were agreed and signed 
as a true record. 

Further to minute 18/17, the Cabinet Member was informed that a community 
speed watch exercise, to involve Councillor Innes, Councillor Williams, local 
residents and the Police, had been arranged for Kelmscote Road on 21st 
November 2017.

26. Pre-Application Advice Scheme - Highways and Drainage 

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) 
that proposed the introduction of a pre-application charging scheme for both the 
Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority and the review of the planning 
pre-application charging schedules on an annual basis.

Despite the pressures that the Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority 
had both been experiencing, over recent years officers had continued to offer a 
free pre-application advice service in connection with planning applications to be 
determined by the Authority. However, the service provided had been limited and 
dependent upon resources and capacity.

The increasing pressure on local authorities to be self-financing by 2020, the drive 
to be more commercially minded, and the recognition that paid for pre-application 
advice was now widespread, was generally accepted by developers. This had led 
to the proposal to introduce a pre-application charging scheme for both the 
Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



– 2 –

The planning pre-application charging schedules would be reviewed on an annual 
basis and adjustments made to fees where appropriate, to reflect the quality of the 
service and resources provided.

RESOLVED that the Cabinet Member approves the introduction of Pre-
Application Charging Schemes for both the Highway Authority and the Lead 
Local Flood Authority.

27. Petitions Determined by Letter and Petitions Deferred Pending Further 
Investigations 

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) 
that provided a summary of the recent petitions received that were to be 
determined by letter, or where decisions had been deferred pending further 
investigations and holding letters were being circulated. Details of the individual 
petitions were set out in an appendix attached to the report and included target 
dates for action. The report was submitted for monitoring and transparency 
purposes. 

The report indicated that each petition had been dealt with on an individual basis, 
with the Cabinet Member considering advice from officers on appropriate action to 
respond to the petitioners’ request. When it had been decided to respond to the 
petition without formal consideration at a Cabinet Member meeting, both the 
relevant Councillor/petition organiser could still request that their petition be the 
subject of a Cabinet Member report.

Members were informed that where holding letters were being sent, this was 
because further investigation work was required. Once matters had been 
investigated either a follow up letter would be sent or a report submitted to a future 
Cabinet Member meeting.
 
RESOLVED that the actions being taken by officers as detailed in the 
appendix to the report, in response to the petitions received, be endorsed.

28. Outstanding Issues 

There were no outstanding issues.

29. Any other items of Public Business 

There were no other items of public business.

(Meeting closed at 3.30 pm)

Page 6



 Public report
Cabinet Member Report

Cabinet Member for City Services 29 January 2018

Name of Cabinet Member: 
Cabinet Member for City Services – Councillor J Innes

Director Approving Submission of the report:
Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

Ward(s) affected:
Woodlands 

Title:
Report - Petition – Request for Road Safety Measures for Alderminster Road 

Is this a key decision?

No  

Executive Summary:

A petition of 466 signatures (430 paper signatures and 36 e-petition signatures) has been 
received requesting road safety measures are installed on Alderminster Road.

In accordance with the City Council's procedure for dealing with petitions, those relating to road 
safety are heard by the Cabinet Member for City Services.  The Cabinet Member had considered 
this petition prior to this meeting and in response to the issues raised requested that the petition 
was dealt with by letter (determination letter), rather than a formal report being submitted to a 
meeting, to be able to deal with the matter more efficiently.

The determination letter advised of the action proposed and approved in response to the issue 
raised. On receipt of the determination letter the petition sponsor, Councillor Lepoidevin, has 
confirmed she did not wish the petition to be solely progressed by letter and wanted the speed 
concerns to be considered at a Cabinet Member for City Services meeting.

The cost of introducing road safety schemes and parking restrictions are funded from the 
Highways Maintenance and Investment Capital Programme budget through the Local Transport 
Plan

Recommendations:

Cabinet Member for City Services is recommended to: 

1)     Note the petitioners concerns.

2)     Endorse that the actions confirmed by determination letter to the petition spokesperson (as 
detailed in paragraph 1.7 of the report) are undertaken. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2

List of Appendices included:

Appendix A – Location Plan
Appendix B – Determination Letter

Background Papers

None

Other useful documents:

None

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?

No

Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?

No

Will this report go to Council?

No

Page 8



3

Report title: Report - Petition – Request for Road Safety Measures for Alderminster Road 

1. Context (or background)

1.1 A petition of 466 signatures (430 paper signatures and 36 e-petition signatures) has been 
received requesting road safety measures are installed on Alderminster Road. The petition 
is supported by Councillor Lepoidevin, who is also the petition spokesperson.

1.2 The petition advises:

‘We the undersigned are calling for significant safety measures to stop speeding traffic 
as it approaches the bend in Alderminster Road, and for double yellow lines by the side 
of the shop.’

1.3 Alderminster Road is a local distributor road.    The road is part of a bus route and there are 
also shops located in an area accessed from Alderminster Road. Park Hill Primary School 
is located nearby on Lower Eastern Green Lane.  A location plan is shown in Appendix A.

1.4 A review of the personal recorded injury collision history of Alderminster Road shows that in 
the last 3 years (for the time period up to 31/10/2017) 2 personal injury collisions have 
been recorded. 1 at the Broad Lane/Alderminster Road junction, resulting in slight injury 
and 1 near the junction with Beausale Croft resulting in slight injury.

1.5 Due to budgetary constraints, requests for road safety schemes are prioritised utilising 
recorded personal injury collision data.  As referred to in 1.4 above, 2 injury collisions have 
been recorded in the last 3 years, therefore Alderminster Road does not meet the criteria 
for a local safety scheme.

1.6 In accordance with the City Council's procedure for dealing with petitions, those relating to 
road safety and waiting restrictions are heard by the Cabinet Member for City Services.  
The Cabinet Member considered the petition prior to this meeting and in response 
requested that the issue was dealt with by determination letter rather than a formal report 
being submitted to a meeting, to be able to deal with the matter more efficiently.

1.7 The determination letter (copy in Appendix B) advised of the actions proposed and 
approved in response to the petition.  These actions were: 

i) Road Markings - Existing road markings to be refreshed. 

ii) Waiting restrictions - New waiting restrictions to be advertised as part of the next batch of 
proposed restrictions on 17 November. The proposed restrictions will consist of double 
yellow lines (no waiting at any time) incorporating the junctions with Beausale Crescent, 
Ayhno Close and both sides of Alderminster Road between these junctions.

These have been advertised and no objections received, the double yellow lines will be 
installed once the legal process has been completed.

iii) Installation of mobile vehicle activated signs (VAS) – We have recently purchased some 
mobile VAS for use across the city and Alderminster Road will be included in the 
programme of sites for the deployment of these signs.

iv) Community Speed Watch - Contact details were provided should residents wish to get 
involved in the Community Speed Watch initiative

Page 9



4

2 Options considered and recommended proposal

2.1 The recommended proposals in regard to the issues raised have already been approved 
and are detailed in the determination letter (Appendix B) and item 1.7.  

3. Results of consultation undertaken

3.1 Residents who will be directly affected by the introduction of the proposed double yellow 
lines were written to, advising of the proposal and how to object should they wish to do so.  
Notices were also displayed on street.  No objections were received.

4. Timetable for implementing this decision

4.1 The mobile VAS signs will be installed before the end of February 2018

4.2 The double yellow lines will be installed once the legal process has been completed (before 
the end of March 2018).  

5. Comments from Director of Finance and Corporate Services

5.1 Financial implications

The introduction of waiting restrictions requires a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO).  
Introducing TROs, is funded from the Highways Maintenance and Investment Capital 
Programme budget through the Local Transport Plan.

The programme for the implementation of mobile VAS signs is funded from the Highways 
Maintenance and Investment Capital Programme budget through the Local Transport Plan.  
This budget will also fund the maintenance of the carriageway markings.

5.2 Legal implications

Under section 41 of the Highways Act 1980, the Council has a duty to maintain those 
adopted highways that it is responsible for to a standard where they are reasonably 
passable for ordinary traffic. Any major contracts will be approved by the Procurement 
board and let under the usual contract rules

The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 allows the Council to make a Traffic Order on 
various grounds e.g. improving safety, improving traffic flow and preserving or improving 
the amenities of an area provided it has given due consideration to the effect of such an 
order. 

In accordance with Section 122 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, when considering 
whether it would be expedient to make a traffic order the Council is under a duty to have 
regard to and balance various potentially conflicting factors e.g. the convenient and safe 
movement of traffic (including pedestrians), adequate parking, improving or preserving 
local amenity, air quality and/or public transport provision.

There is an obligation under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to advertise our intention 
to make Traffic Orders and to inform various stakeholders, including the Police and the 
public. The Authority is obliged to consider any representations received. If representations 
are received these are considered by the Cabinet Member for City Services. Regulations 
allow for an advertised order to be modified (in response to objections or otherwise) before 
a final version of the order is made.

Page 10



5

The 1984 Act provides that once a Traffic Order has been made it may only be challenged 
further via the High Court on a point of law (i.e. that the Order does not comply with the Act 
for some reason).

6. Other implications

6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council’s key objectives / corporate 
priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / Local Area 
Agreement (or Coventry Sustainable Community Strategy)?

The introduction of the mobile VAS signs and waiting restrictions, will contribute to the City 
Council’s aims of ensuring that citizens, especially children and young people, are safe and 
the objective of working for better pavements, streets and roads.

6.2 How is risk being managed?

None

6.3 What is the impact on the organisation?

None

6.4 Equalities / EIA 

No specific equalities impact assessment has been carried out.  

6.5 Implications for  (or impact on) the environment

None

6.6 Implications for partner organisations?

None

Page 11



6

Report author(s)

Name and job title:
Caron Archer
Team Leader (Traffic Management)

Directorate:
Place

Tel and email contact:
Tel: 024 7683 2062
Email: caron.archer@coventry.gov.uk

Enquiries should be directed to the above person.

Contributor/approver 
name

Title Directorate or 
organisation

Date doc 
sent out

Date response 
received or 
approved

Contributors:
Colin Knight Director (Transportation 

and Highways)
Place 15.01.2018 17.01.2018

Colin Whitehouse Acting Head of Traffic and 
Network Management

People 15.01.2018 17.01.2018

Rachel Goodyer Traffic and Road Safety 
Manager

Place 15.01.2018 18.01.2018

Liz Knight/ Michelle 
Salmon

Governance Services 
Officer

Place 15.01.2018 16.01.2018

Names of approvers: 
(Officers and Members)
Graham Clark Lead Accountant, Finance Place 15.01.2018 15.01.2018
Rob Parkes Commercial Lawyer, Legal 

Services
Place 15.01.2018 15.01.2018

Councillor J Innes Cabinet Member for City 
Services

- 15.01.2018 15.01.2018

This report is published on the council’s website: moderngov.coventry.gov.uk

Page 12

mailto:caron.archer@coventry.gov.uk
moderngov.coventry.gov.uk


7

Appendix A – Location plan (also showing proposed double yellow lines)

Page 13



8

Appendix B – Copy of text of determination letter

Re: petition submitted on 21 August 2017
Subject matter: Request for safety measures to reduce speeding traffic in Alderminster 
Road

I am writing with regard to the above petition and your request for measures to reduce speeding 
traffic in Alderminster Road. The matter was discussed with Councillor Innes, Cabinet Member 
for City Services, who has requested that this be dealt with by way of letter rather than a formal 
report being submitted to a future meeting so that this can be dealt with more quickly. 

Following recent site visits, arrangements are being made for the existing ‘SLOW’ and other road 
markings to be refreshed.

New waiting restrictions will also be advertised as part of the next batch of proposed restrictions 
on 17 November. The proposed restrictions will consist of double yellow lines (No waiting at any 
time) incorporating the junctions with Beausale Crescent, Ayhno Close and both sides of 
Alderminster Road between these junctions.

We have recently purchased some mobile vehicle activated signs for use across the city and we 
will include this location in the programme of sites for the deployment of these signs. 

You may also wish to request that the location is included in the Community Speed Watch 
initiative. To make a request, please contact the Police by emailing: cvcsw@west-
midlands.pnn.police.uk. 

I would be grateful if you could please confirm in writing, either by email or letter, as soon as 
possible, that you agree that the petition be progressed by way of this letter. If you do not agree, 
a report responding to your petition will be prepared for consideration at a future Cabinet Member 
meeting. You will be invited to attend this meeting where you have the opportunity to speak on 
behalf of the petitioners. 

Page 14

mailto:cvcsw@west-midlands.pnn.police.uk
mailto:cvcsw@west-midlands.pnn.police.uk


 Public report
Cabinet Member

1

Name of Cabinet Member: 
Cabinet Member for City Services – Councillor J Innes 29th January 2018

Director Approving Submission of the report:
Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

Ward(s) affected:
Cheylesmore

Title:
Petition – To Request that Coventry Council Landscape the Land at Whitley Common / JLR 
Bridge over A444

Is this a key decision?
No 

Executive Summary:

This report responds to a petition containing 111 signatures which was submitted to Coventry City 
Council. The petition is supported by Councillor Cllr Bailey and requests that the Council landscape 
the land at Whitley Common / JLR Bridge over A444.

The petition reads:-

When Costain vacated their compound on Whitley Common they were contracted to return the 
land to its original state. They did not do so and the work was to be undertaken by Coventry Council 
who have reserved funding for this landscaping. The bridge has been open for 16 months now but 
the land remains a complete eyesore, uneven with overgrown weeds which attracts litter. The tall 
weeds are also a danger as they restrict the view of motorists. I have been trying to get this work 
done for some time by polite request but without result. I have now asked my local Councillor to 
intervene and I am considering an approach to my MP.

Recommendations:

The Cabinet Member for (City Services) is asked to note: 

1 The work which has recently been undertaken to control vegetation growth on the A444 slip 
road verges. 

2 The landscape work proposed to be undertaken on the A444 slip road verges and time scales 
for undertaking these works.

3 The proposed landscape renovation works to be undertaken on Whitley Common and time 
scales for undertaking these works.

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



2

List of Appendices included:

None

Other useful background papers:

None

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?

No

Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or other 
body?

No

Will this report go to Council?

No

Page 16



3

Report title: Petition – To get Coventry Council to Landscape the Land at Whitley Common / JLR 
Bridge over A444

1. Context (or background)

1.1 The petition refers generally to two areas of land. The first being an area of land on Whitley 
Common which had been used by Costain's under agreement as a temporary depot and 
the other area of land includes a number of slip road verge embankments on the A444 
constructed as part of the JLR bridge construction.

1.2 Planning approval for the scheme at Whitley Junction was approved in February 2014 
which included a condition that the landscaping was carried out in accordance with an 
approved plan on the on the slip road verge areas adjacent to the A444. 

1.3 An early review of the works and programme of the main contractor, Costain's, identified a 
number of concerns the Council had with aspects of the works so a decision was taken to 
remove the landscaping works from the contract. The main works proceeded to completion 
and the site was then handed back to the City Council in July 2015. 

1.4 On completion of the works the Council committed to ensure that the landscaping scheme 
was undertaken and the remedial works to the site compound area were executed. Over a 
number of months the Council pursued Costain’s to undertake the works and despite a 
number of reassurances the works never transpired.  Both parties later entered into a 
contractual dispute over a large number of items which took over 6 months to resolve. 

1.5 In March 2017, following legal advice a Settlement Agreement was entered into outside of 
the contract. This removed the requirement for Costain's to complete the A444 landscape 
works and the remedial works required on Whitley Common.  It was determined that this 
work would be undertaken directly by the Council.

1.6 At the time of the Settlement Agreement, the planting season had effectively passed. The 
planting season runs from October to March. To ensure that planting of trees and shrubs 
along the A444 had the best opportunity of surviving and becoming successfully established 
it was agreed that the planting would be undertaken during the forthcoming planting season.

1.7 The landscaping scheme includes the planting of over 2,600 trees made up of both 
standard trees and whips from a wide variety and balance of native species. It also includes 
the planting of over 1,500 ground cover shrubs from a variety of species. Both offer a range 
of colour and characteristics, providing a resource and habitat for wildlife and reducing 
future maintenance demands and cost.

1.8 Whilst the Settlement Agreement with Costain's was being established no grounds 
maintenance of the A444 verge areas was undertaken prior to landscaping as this had been 
part of the main contractors work programme. However, this responsibility was 
subsequently handed to the Council and some tractor flailing was carried out to maintain 
site lines.

1.9 A dense covering of vegetation had become established over the newly created verges 
giving an unsightly appearance. The steepness of the verges has meant that the vegetation 
could not be reduced by conventional pedestrian operated mowers and has necessitated 
the hiring of a robotic flail to cut and prepare the steep banks for planting. This work was 
undertaken during December 2017. The remaining verge areas will be cut by use of a 
tractor mounted flail. Both operations will be undertaken simultaneously to minimise the 
need for traffic management arrangement and inconvenience to motorists.  

Page 17



4

1.10 It is proposed that the area of land on Whitley Common previously occupied by Costain's    
as a temporary Depot will be cultivated and planted with wild flowers. The work to cultivate 
and prepare the ground started in December 2017 with seeding taking place during April to 
early May 2018. Similar to other wild flower seeding undertaken throughout the City a range 
of differing plant species will be sown, providing a dramatic and vibrant display of colour 
and interest lasting from May to October. This will also provide a valuable food resource 
supporting many bird species and invertebrates including bees. 

2. Options considered and recommended proposal

2.1 The option to do nothing has been rejected as the areas will continue to naturalise and      
become increasingly unsightly and the subject of complaint. 

2.2 It is important that the A444 verge areas and the land on Whitley Common are properly    
landscaped and sustainably managed to provide a suitably attractive and welcoming 
environment which contributes to the environmental quality of the area but also to provide 
a contribution to supporting wildlife.

3. Results of consultation undertaken

3.1 There has been no consultation on this matter

4. Timetable for implementing this decision

4.1 Operations to remove the existing vegetation on the A444 verges and prepare the ground 
for landscaping was undertaken during December 2017. The planting of trees and shrubs 
as detailed above will be undertaken between January and March 2018,

4.2 Works to restore the land on Whitley Common previously used by Costain's as a temporary 
depot will began during Dec 2017 with ground preparations. This will be followed by wild 
flower seeding during early May 2018.

5. Comments from Director of Finance and Corporate Services

5.1. Financial implications

Funding to undertake the landscape and seeding operations will be from existing revenue 
resources.

5.2. Legal implications

None at present

Other implications

6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council's Plan?

Parks and green spaces are highly valued by the citizens of Coventry and contribute 
greatly to improving the quality of life to those that live and work in the City and also helps 
address health inequalities. 

6.2 How is risk being managed?

Risk will be managed through the existing Place directorate risk profile.

Page 18



5

6.3 What is the impact on the organisation?

Continued maintenance of the site will delivered using existing resources.

6.4 Equalities / EIA 

No equality impact assessments have been undertaken. 

6.5 Implications for  (or impact on) the environment

No direct impact 

6.6 Implications for partner organisations?

The Greenspace Service will continue to foster close partnership engagement with local 
residents and voluntary groups. 

Page 19



6

Report author(s):

Name and job title: 
Graham Hood
Head of Streetpride and Greenspace

Directorate: 
Place

Tel and email contact: 
Tel: 02476 83 2194
Email: graham.hood@coventry.gov.uk

Enquiries should be directed to the above person.

Contributor/approver 
name

Title Directorate 
or 
organisation

Date doc 
sent out

Date response 
received or 
approved

Contributors:
Cath Crosby Lead Accountant, 

Finance
Place 11th Dec 2017 14th Dec 2017

Clara Thomson Planning and 
Highways Lawyer, 
Legal Services

Place 11th Dec 2017 13th Dec 2017

Names of approvers for 
submission: 
(Officers and Members)
Liz Knight Governance 

Services Officer
Place 18th Jan 2018 15th Jan 2018

Ian Lewis Senior Project 
Manager 
(Transportation & 
Delivery)

Place 6th Dec 2017     6th Dec 2017

Sam Morris Streetpride Area 
Manager

Place 6th Dec 2017      6th Dec 2017

Andrew Walster Assistant Director 
(Streetscene and 
Regulatory 
Services)

Place 10th Jan 2018 11th Jan 2018

Councillor J Innes Cabinet Member for 
City Services

- 15th Jan 2018 15th Jan 2018

This report is published on the council's website: www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings 

Page 20

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings


 Public report
Cabinet Member Report

Cabinet Member for City Services 29 January 2018

Name of Cabinet Member: 
Cabinet Member for City Services – Councillor J Innes

Director Approving Submission of the report:
Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

Ward(s) affected:
Earlsdon

Title:
Report – Petition - Refurbishment of the Road and Pavements on Delaware Road.

Is this a key decision?

No  

Executive Summary:

A petition of 18 signatures has been received requesting that Coventry City Council refurbish 
both the road and pavements at Delaware Road. The petition is supported and sponsored by 
Councillor Ken Taylor. 

In accordance with the City Council's procedure for dealing with petitions, those relating to road 
safety and maintenance are heard by the Cabinet Member for City Services.  

Recommendations:

Cabinet Member for City Services is recommended to: 

Approve that the road and pavements be held as sites on Coventry City’s forward programme list 
and their condition be subject to on-going monitoring and be prioritised and scored against all 
other similar sites Citywide, and when a priority score is reached that they be included in any 
future maintenance treatment programmes, budget permitting. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



2

List of Appendices included:

Appendix A – Location Plan

Background Papers

None

Other useful documents:

None

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?

No

Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?

No

Will this report go to Council?

No

Page 22



3

Report title: – Petition - Refurbishment of the Road and Pavements on Delaware Road 

1. Context (or background)

A petition of 18 signatures has been received requesting that Coventry City Council refurbish 
both the road and pavements at Delaware Road. The petition is supported and sponsored by 
Councillor Ken Taylor. 

1.1 The petition advises:

‘Both the road and the pavements have been neglected for many years and it is now 
time for a full refurbishment, rather than the patchwork maintenance that has been 
carried out so far.’ 

1.2 Delaware Road is a residential road and the properties located along its length have off 
street driveway parking. The extent of the site is from Frobisher Road to Maidavale 
Crescent and the road is subject to a 30mph speed limit. 

1.3 An officer of the City Council made a site visit to establish the condition of the road and 
pavements and the following observations were made at that time: 

Road Type – The carriageway surface on Delaware Road is micro asphalt which is 
estimated to be around 25 years old. Where this has failed there is evidence of a pink 
aggregate surface dressing which is assumed to have been laid onto a flexible bound 
pavement construction. There are areas of structural failure to varying degrees; however, the 
road is still intact and safe.

Pavement Type - The pavements are 1.8 metres in width and are a bituminous construction 
which have been subject to utility reinstatements over the years and are now showing signs 
of aging but are still in a safe condition. A few properties have extended the width of their 
forecourt openings and are crossing the public highway without the necessary full width 
vehicle accesses. There are no defects exceeding the intervention level at the time of this 
visit. 

2. Options considered and recommended proposal

2.1 Following this assessment, and given the current condition, age and taking into 
consideration any on-going maintenance and cost of continuing to carry out localised 
repairs, suitable treatment options and optimal delivery timings were considered. 

2.2 Footways - The recommended option would be to reconstruct the areas of surface failure 
as necessary and then apply a footway slurry seal treatment to the full length. 
Road – The recommended option would be an inlay treatment using either the retread 
process or laying new asphalt to a depth of 100mm to add strength to the road. 

3. Results of consultation undertaken

3.1 No consultation has been undertaken

Page 23



4

4. Timetable for implementing this decision

4.1 The implementation of the recommended proposals is dependent on funding and 
prioritisation with competing locations; therefore the implementation of the 
recommendations is on-going. 

5. Comments from Director of Finance and Corporate Services

5.1 Financial implications

Future capital highway maintenance programmes and proposed treatments to 
carriageways and pavements are established on a ‘worst first’ basis across all road 
categories. The decision for inclusion in any year’s programme will be taken by Cabinet at 
their meeting in March of any given financial year. It will also be dependent on the level of 
funding that is made available for Capital Highway maintenance in that year and will further 
depend on the condition of the road and pavements when compared to other similar sites 
citywide. Therefore the actual scheduling of the works will be based on priority of the 
scheme and the funds available. Undertaking the repair and resurfacing of the road and 
pavements would be funded from any allocated Highways Capital repair budget and is 
currently valued at a combined total of approximately £65,000. 

5.2 Legal implications

Under section 41 of the Highways Act 1980, the Council has a duty to maintain those 
adopted highways that it is responsible for to a standard where they are reasonably 
passable for ordinary traffic. Any major contracts will be approved by the Procurement 
board and let under the usual contract rules

6. Other implications

6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council’s key objectives / corporate 
priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / Local Area 
Agreement (or Coventry Sustainable Community Strategy)?

Highway maintenance is part of Coventry’s vision for better pavements and roads which is 
a key objective. Completing the pavement and carriageway maintenance work would 
contribute to this objective. 

6.2 How is risk being managed?
None

6.3 What is the impact on the organisation?
None

6.4 Equalities / EIA 
No specific equalities impact assessment has been carried out.  

6.5 Implications for (or impact on) the environment
None

6.6 Implications for partner organisations?
None

Page 24



5

Report author(s)

Name and job title:
Tracy Cowley
Highways Technical Services Manager

Directorate:
Place

Tel and email contact:
Tel: 024 7683 2746
Email: tracy.cowley@coventry.gov.uk

Enquiries should be directed to the above person.

Contributor/approver 
name

Title Directorate or 
organisation

Date doc 
sent out

Date response 
received or 
approved

Contributors:
Colin Knight Director 

(Transportation and 
Highways)

Place 11/12/17 11/12/17

Neil Cowper Head of Highways Place 11/12/17 13/12/17

Liz Knight/ Michelle 
Salmon

Governance 
Services Officer

Place 11/12/17 12/12/17

Names of approvers: 
(Officers and Members)
Graham Clark Lead Accountant, 

Finance
Place 11/12/17 12/12/17

Rob Parkes Place Team Leader, 
Legal Services

Place 11/12/17 12/12/17

Councillor J Innes Cabinet Member for 
City Services

= 11/12/17 15/01/18

This report is published on the council’s website: moderngov.coventry.gov.uk

Page 25

mailto:tracy.cowley@coventry.gov.uk
../../../../../../Traffic&NetworkManagement/COMMITTEE/moderngov.coventry.gov.uk


6

Appendix A – Location plan

Submitted to the Cabinet Member 
for City Services meeting 16th 
January 2018

Page 26



 Public report
Cabinet Member

Name of Cabinet Member: 
Cabinet Member for City Services – Councillor J Innes 29 January 2018

Director Approving Submission of the report:
Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

Ward(s) affected:
All

Title:
Petition – CCTV to be Installed at Lentons Lane Cemetery

Is this a key decision?

‘No – Although the residents visiting the cemetery may reside in all wards across the city, it is 
anticipated that the impact of the proposals will not be significant’.

Executive Summary:

This report responds to a petition containing 474 signatures which was submitted to Coventry City 
Council and dated 9th December 2017. The petition is supported by Councillor Cllr Seaman and 
requests that the Council install CCTV at Lentons Lane Cemetery following a thefts from a number 
of graves.

The petition reads:-

I am starting this petition to get CCTV installed at Lentons Lane Cemetery after someone has 
pinched the lights off my baby’s grave and off many other graves. It is about time something is 
done as it has happened plenty of times before and seems to be getting more and more regular.

Recommendations:

The Cabinet Member for (City Services) is asked to note: 

1 The number of reported issues of anti-social behaviour recorded at Lentons Lane and other 
cemeteries over the past 12 months. 

2 The cost of installing CCTV at Lentons Lane Cemetery estimated at and its limited 
effectiveness.

3 The actions being taken by the Bereavement Service to reduce antisocial behaviour at the 
Cemetery.

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



List of Appendices included:

None

Other useful background papers:

None

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?

No

Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or other 
body?

No

Will this report go to Council?

No

Page 28



Report title: Petition – To get CCTV Installed at Lentons Lane Cemetery

1. Context (or background)

1.1 There are 6 cemeteries administered by Coventry City Council and in the past there has 
been  a number of requests for CCTV to be fitted into all of these sites. Such requests have 
needed to be balanced against a number of considerations:

 The majority of visitors to the cemeteries and crematorium Gardens of Remembrance 
want to visit a loved one’s final resting place in peace and without interruption from 
others. Many people feel to have cameras up and watching them as they spend time 
in reflection is an invasion of their privacy.

 It is impossible to be able to supply a standard level of security cover for all individuals 
who have a grave or memorial in the Gardens of Remembrance. With the general 
landscaping of all sites including hedges and trees etc. vision would be obscured for 
most graves which are not in direct line of a camera.

 The quality of any footage obtained by CCTV would likely be insufficient to enable 
perpetrators to be identified particularly during the evening periods and perpetrators 
will take action to disguise their identities.

 The initial costs to set up such a system would likely exceed £30,000 and in addition 
there would be on going monitoring costs. The cost would be unjustifiable taking in to 
account the low number of incidents of actual vandalism we experience within the 
cemeteries. 

1.2 Overall the number of high value incidents regarding vandalism is very low and there have 
been no such reports made to the Bereavement service the last 4 years. 

1.3 There are a small number of occasions throughout the year when low value, high 
sentimental items are taken off graves and out of the Gardens of Remembrance (these 
items consist of flowers both fresh and artificial, small ornaments and pots etc.). Although 
theft off a grave or from an individual garden in the Gardens of Remembrance is highly 
distressing to the family concerned the relatively few incidents do not indicate wide spread 
or major vandalism issue within the cemeteries administered by Coventry City Council.

1.4 We do not believe the introduction of cameras and the very limited impact they would have 
would in any way deter the sorts of occurrences we experience within the cemeteries.

1.5 Fortunately there are relatively few such occurrences however we are very much aware of 
the impact this can have on individuals and take the matter extremely seriously. In an on-
going effort to keep the occurrences low we maintain  regular communications and support 
from the local Community Officers ensuring a regular presence within the cemeteries by 
means of patrolling when in the area and we continue to lock cemetery sites in the evening.

1.6 Over the last 12 month period (Dec. 2016 – Dec. 2017) 36 reports of low value thefts from 
graves and the Gardens of Remembrance have been reported to Bereavement Services 
(Canley Cemetery 15, Windmill Road Cemetery 2, Walsgrave Cemetery 1, Lentons Lane 
cemetery 10, London Road Cemetery 2, St Pauls Cemetery 1 and Gardens of 
Remembrance 5).

1.7 There has been 1 report of anti-social behaviour at Lentons Lane - youths shooting and 
killing a duck using a catapult.

Page 29



1.8 Signs have been erected in Lentons Lane Cemetery advising visitors how to report theft 
and anti-social behaviour providing various methods of communication including telephone 
numbers, email addresses and guidance regarding the need to report such matters to the 
police.

1.9 Reviews and meetings are currently taking place regarding the activities around the 
opening and closure of the gates, regular patrols by the Local Community Policing units 
and patrols carried out by Coventry City Council Communications Centre. 

1.10 Enquiries are ongoing regarding the pedestrian gate and the options available to remove 
the potential access of vehicles, but maintain easy access for wheelchairs etc.

1.11 Enquiries are ongoing regarding the setup of a direct complaints system for acts of theft to 
be pin marked on a map accessed via the Bereavement Services web pages.

2 Options considered and recommended proposal

2.1 The option of installing of CCTV within the cemetery has been rejected on privacy 
grounds, its disproportionately high cost and limited effectiveness. 

2.2 The option to do nothing has also been rejected and we will continue to work with the 
local police service with a view to maintaining regular patrols of the Cemetery, record all 
incidents reported to us and ensure the site is secured during the evening periods. 

3 Results of consultation undertaken

3.1 A meeting took place during November 2017 at Lentons Lane Cemetery with petitioners 
and attended by the Cabinet Member for City Services and Council Services Officers. The 
meeting provided a valuable opportunity for petitioners to express their experiences and 
concerns, obtain views and identify potential practical ways forward to help address some 
of the problems experienced.

4 Timetable for implementing this decision

4.1 To be agreed subject to approval of a recommendation within this report.

5 Comments from Director of Finance and Corporate Services

5.1 Financial implications

There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations of this report.

5.2 Legal implications

None at present

Other implications

6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council's Plan?

Cemeteries and other green spaces are highly valued by the citizens of Coventry and 
contribute greatly to improving the quality of life to those that live and work in the City and 
also helps address health inequalities. 

Page 30



6.2 How is risk being managed?

Risk will be managed through the existing Place directorate risk profile.

6.3 What is the impact on the organisation?

Continued maintenance of the site will delivered using existing resources.

6.4 Equalities / EIA 

No equality impact assessments have been undertaken. 

6.5 Implications for  (or impact on) the environment

No direct impact 

6.6 Implications for partner organisations?

There are no implications. 

Page 31



Report author(s):

Name and job title: 
Graham Hood
Head of Streetpride and Greenspace

Directorate: 
Place

Tel and email contact: 
Tel: 02476 83 2194
Email: graham.hood@coventry.gov.uk

Enquiries should be directed to the above person.

Contributor/approver 
name

Title Directorate 
or 
organisation

Date doc 
sent out

Date response 
received or 
approved

Contributors:
Cath Crosby Lead Accountant, 

Finance
Place 1st Jan 2018 8th Jan 2018

Rob Parkes Team Leader, 
Place, Legal 
Services

Place 1st Jan 2018 9th Jan 2018

Names of approvers for 
submission: 
(Officers and Members)
Liz Knight Governance 

Services Officer
Place 18th Jan 2018 15th Jan 2018

Mandy Thomas Bereavement 
Service Manager

Place 2nd Jan 2018     4th Jan 2019

Andrew Walster Assistant Director 
(Streetscene and 
Regulatory 
Services)

Place 10th Jan 2087 11th Jan 2018

Councillor J Innes Cabinet Member for 
City Services

- 15th Jan 2018 15th Jan 2017

This report is published on the council's website: www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings 

T

Page 32

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings


 Public report
Cabinet Member Report

Cabinet Member for City Services 29 January 2018

Name of Cabinet Member: 
Cabinet Member for City Services – Councillor J Innes

Director Approving Submission of the report:
Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

Ward(s) affected:
Bablake, Binley & Willenhall, Earlsdon, Henley, Lower Stoke, Sherbourne, Westwood, 
Whoberley, Wyken

Title:
Objections to Proposed Waiting Restrictions (Variation 5)

Is this a key decision?

No - Although the matters within the report affect several wards in the City, it is not anticipated 
that the impact will be significant.

Executive Summary:

Waiting restrictions within Coventry are reviewed on a regular basis.

On 17th November 2017, a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) relating to proposed new waiting 
restrictions and amendments to existing waiting restrictions was advertised.  45 objections were 
received (43 individual objections, 1 multi-signature letter, and 1 petition).  In addition, 8 responses 
in support of proposals were also received.

In accordance with the City Council's procedure for dealing with objections to TROs, they are 
reported to the Cabinet Member for City Services for a decision as to how to proceed.

The cost of introducing the proposed TRO, if approved, will be funded from the Highways 
Maintenance and Investment Capital Programme budget through the Local Transport Plan.

Recommendations:

Cabinet Member for City Services is recommended to: 

1. Consider the objections to the proposed waiting restrictions;

2. Subject to recommendation 1 above, approve the implementation of the restrictions as 
advertised at; Binley Road, Cheriton Close, Ebro Crescent, Kingsley Walk, Knoll Drive 
and the junction of Scots Lane/Christchurch Road.

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



2

3. Subject to recommendation 1 above, approve that the restrictions are not implemented, 
but the situation is monitored and should the Police advise of issues relating to 
dangerous or obstructive parking occurring, new proposals be advertised at 
Brackenhurst Road,  

4. Subject to recommendation 1 above, approve that the restrictions are not implemented 
on Conway Avenue,

5. Subject to recommendation 1 above, approve that the restrictions are not implemented 
in Coral Close, but that a consultation is undertaken to determine if the majority of 
residents are in favour of either no additional restrictions, or double yellow lines one 
side of the road, any new proposals to be advertised as part of the next waiting 
restriction review,

6. Subject to recommendation 1 above, approve that an extension (approx. 4m) to the 
double yellow lines on the western side of Coombe Close and double yellow lines for 
junction protection at Torbay Road/Winsford Avenue are advertised as part of the next 
waiting restriction review

7. Subject to recommendations 1 to 6, approve that the proposed Traffic Regulation Order 
is made operational.

List of Appendices included:

Appendix A – Summary of proposed restrictions, objections and responses

Background Papers

None

Other useful documents:

None

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?

No

Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?

No

Will this report go to Council?

No

Page 34



3

Report title: Objections to Proposed Waiting Restrictions

1. Context (or background)

1.1 On 17th November 2017, a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) relating to proposed new waiting 
restrictions and amendments to existing waiting restrictions was advertised.  45 objections 
were received (43 individual objections, 1 multi-signature letter and 1 petition).  In addition, 
8 responses in support of proposals were also received.

 
1.2 The majority of Traffic Regulation Orders relating to loading and waiting restrictions in 

Coventry are consolidated into one Order. New or changes to existing waiting and loading 
restrictions are undertaken by varying the Consolidation Order.

1.3 Many of the locations where changes are proposed had been identified from requests for 
new or changes to existing waiting restrictions.  These requests had been received from a 
number of sources, including the public, due to safety concerns relating to parked vehicles.

1.4 As part of the statutory procedure, the Traffic Regulation Order was advertised in the local 
press and notices were posted on lamp columns in the area of the proposed restrictions on 
17th November 2017, advising that any formal objections should be made in writing by 8th 
December 2017.  In addition, letters were also sent to residents who would be directly 
affected, due to waiting restrictions being installed on the public highway outside their 
property.

2. Options considered and recommended proposal

2.1 45 objections were received (43 individual objections, 1 multi-signature letter and 1 petition).  
In addition, 8 responses in support of proposals were also received. The objections to the 
proposals, responses to the objections, details of support and origin of proposed waiting 
restrictions are summarised in the tables in Appendix A.

2.2 In considering the objections received, the options are to:

i) make the order for the proposal as advertised;
ii) make amendments to the proposals, which may require the revised proposal to be 

advertised; 
iii) not to make the order relating to the proposal.

2.3 The recommended proposals in response to each location where objections have been 
received are summarised in the tables in Appendix A.

3. Results of consultation undertaken

3.1 The proposed TRO for the waiting restrictions was advertised in the Coventry Telegraph on 
17th November 2017; notices were also placed on street in the vicinity of the proposals.  In 
addition, letters were sent to properties which would be directly affected. Letters were also 
sent to other various consultees.  The responses received were:

 45 objections were received (43 individual objections, 1 multi- signature letter and 
1 petition)  

 8 letters of support to proposals were also received

Page 35



4

3.2 The number of objections received were:

1 to proposal for Binley Road
18 to proposal for Brackenhurst Road (17 individual objections and 1 petition)
6 to proposal for Cheriton Close
5 to proposal for Conway Avenue
8 to proposal for Coral Close
1 to proposal for Ebro Crescent
3 to proposal for Kingsley Walk (2 individual objections and 1 multi-signature letter)
2 to proposal for Knoll Drive
1 to proposal for Scots Lane/Christchurch Road

3.3 The number of letters of support were:

1 to proposal for Brackenhurst Road 
1 to proposal for Cheriton Close
1 to proposal for Clifford Bridge Road/ Bridgeacre Gardens (northern junction)
5 to proposal for Conway Avenue

3.4 Appendix A details a summary of each of the objections, letters of support and a response 
to the issue(s) raised.  Copies of the content of the objections can be made available on 
request.

4. Timetable for implementing this decision

4.1 It is proposed to make the TRO and install the restrictions as approved by the end of March 
2018.  

5. Comments from Director of Finance and Corporate Services

5.1 Financial implications

The cost of introducing the proposed TROs, if approved, will be funded from the Highways 
Maintenance and Investment Capital Programme budget through the Local Transport Plan.

5.2 Legal implications

The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 allows the Council to make a Traffic Order on various 
grounds e.g. improving safety, improving traffic flow and preserving or improving the 
amenities of an area provided it has given due consideration to the effect of such an order. 

In accordance with Section 122 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, when considering 
whether it would be expedient to make a Traffic Order, the Council is under a duty to have 
regard to and balance various potentially conflicting factors e.g. the convenient and safe 
movement of traffic (including pedestrians), adequate parking, improving or preserving local 
amenity, air quality and/or public transport provision.

There is an obligation under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to advertise our intention 
to make Traffic Orders and to inform various stakeholders, including the Police and the 
public. The Authority is obliged to consider any representations received. If representations 
are received, these are considered by the Cabinet Member for City Services. Regulations 
allow for an advertised Order to be modified (in response to objections or otherwise) before 
a final version of the Order is made.

Page 36



5

The 1984 Act provides that once a Traffic Order has been made, it may only be challenged 
further via the High Court on a point of law (i.e. that the Order does not comply with the Act 
for some reason).

6. Other implications

6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council’s key objectives / corporate 
priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / Local Area Agreement 
(or Coventry Sustainable Community Strategy)?

The proposed changes to the waiting restrictions as recommended will contribute to the City 
Council’s aims of ensuring that citizens, especially children and young people, are safe and 
the objective of working for better pavements, streets and roads. 

6.2 How is risk being managed?

None

6.3 What is the impact on the organisation?

None

6.4 Equalities / EIA 

The introduction of waiting restrictions will reduce obstruction of the carriageway, therefore 
increasing safety for all road users.

6.5 Implications for  (or impact on) the environment

None

6.6 Implications for partner organisations?

None

Page 37



6

Report author(s)

Name and job title:
Caron Archer
Team Leader (Traffic Management)

Directorate:
Place

Tel and email contact:
Tel: 024 7683 2062
Email: caron.archer@coventry.gov.uk

Enquiries should be directed to the above person.

Contributor/approver 
name

Title Directorate or 
organisation

Date doc 
sent out

Date response 
received or 
approved

Contributors:
Colin Knight Director -

Transportation and 
Highways

Place 05.01.2017 18.01.2018

Colin Whitehouse Acting Head of 
Traffic and Network 
Management

Place 05.01.2017 18.01.2018

Rachel Goodyer Traffic and Road 
Safety Manager

Place 05.01.2017 18.01.2018

Liz Knight/Michelle 
Salmon

Governance 
Services Officer

Place 05.01.2017 08.01.2018

Names of approvers: 
(Officers and Members)
Graham Clark Lead Accountant., 

Finance
Place 05.01.2017 05.01.2018

Rob Parkes Commercial Lawyer, 
Legal Services

Place 05.01.2017 15.01.2018

Councillor J Innes Cabinet Member for 
City Services

- 05.01.2017 15.01.2018

This report is published on the council’s website: moderngov.coventry.gov.uk

Page 38

mailto:caron.archer@coventry.gov.uk
file://covserv1/Groups_CSD/Traffic&NetworkManagement/COMMITTEE/moderngov.coventry.gov.uk


7

Appendix A – Summary of proposed restrictions, objections, letters of support and 
responses

Location 
(Ward) Binley Road (Lower Stoke)

Original 
Request

Double yellow lines on approach to junction with Coombe Street to improve visibility.  Issue 
raised by residents supported by Councillor 

Proposal

Double yellow lines to improve visibility on approach to junction.

Objection 
1

Object to double yellow lines proposed in front of property and request length reduced to 
allow a car to park.
Subsequent telephone call received advising of concerns in regard to the priority of the 
junction at Binley Road/Coombe Street and requesting an extension of the double yellow lines 
on the western side of Coombe Street (approx. 4 metres)

Response 
to 

objection

The double yellow lines are proposed in accordance with the advice from the Highway Code 
in regard to parking at a junction.    The Highway Code (243) states ‘Do not stop or park 
opposite or within 10 metres (32 feet) of a junction, except in an authorised parking space’.  
This is to provide visibility at a junction. 

It is not a duty of the City Council to provide on street parking.

Parking at the approach to this junction is affecting visibility, which can result in drivers 
travelling along Binley Road, overshooting the junction.  The double yellow lines are proposed 
to address this issue, in addition a give way sign is also to be installed.

Further site visits have been undertaken to determine whether any reduction in the length of 
double yellow lines on the southern side of the road, outside the property, is possible. 
However, it is considered that the proposed length should not be shortened due to the issue 
that is trying to be addressed.

Recommendation – Install restrictions as advertised and include the request for a short 
extension of the double yellow lines on Coombe Street in the next waiting restriction review.

Page 39



8

Location 
(Ward) Brackenhurst Road (Bablake) 

Original 
Request

Request for double yellow lines on bend due to safety concerns raised by residents, supported 
by Councillor.

Proposal

Installation of double yellow lines on bend

Due to the large number of objections that have been received (18; 17 individual objections 
and 1 petition) many with similar reasons, the objections have been grouped together 
highlighting the main reasons for objecting to the proposal.

Objections 
2 - 6 The 'Independent' Councillor Glenn Williams received 2 requests for lines to be installed on 

the bend on Brackenhurst Road.  I have been told in person by Councillor Williams that the 
requests were made on grounds of 'safety'.  I strongly object that Councillor Williams, on the 
say so of two residents, has now set this costly, time consuming and extremely unnecessary 
ball rolling.  

Regarding accidents statistics -there have been NO accidents.  [Reference on 2 objections to 
long term experience in regard to the location]. You can hear clearly cars coming in both 
directions and see lights approaching at night.

We have been told verbally that residents have requested double yellow lines so they can 
more easily drive in and out of their block paved front gardens - these houses were NOT 
designed to incorporate driveways.  I believe for this process to be honest and transparent we 
need to see evidence of the original requests.

The removal of approximately 8 to 10 parking spaces in Brackenhurst Road due to the double 
yellow lines would mean added mayhem to an existing parking crisis in the road and 
surrounding area.  Indeed, we already have residents from Brownshill Green Road parking on 
the bend of Brackenhurst Road.

Councillor Williams did NOT survey other local residents before putting this ridiculous proposal 
together and setting off this official process.  Had he knocked on the majority of residents 
doors (particularly those that live on the bend) he would have realised immediately that this 
proposal is totally unwelcome. [Refers to support received for the proposal to be abolished].
[Ref to personal details of particular residents and detrimental affect double yellow lines will 
have on these residents wellbeing] 

I regularly visit and park on or around the bend of Brackenhurst Road

Parking in the street is already practically impossible.  Yellow lines will worsen this situation. 
I am totally shocked that on the request of just two people, random Councillors (not acting in 
the best interests of the people they serve) are launching negative, life changing processes 

Page 40



9

such as this TRO.  This is so disappointing and will now turn into a time, consuming, costly 
and stressful time ahead, spanning Christmas.

Could you explain how this process has been able to get started and processed so far without 
a full and fair survey of the area and the residents of that area. 

Objection 
7-18

Most of these objections advise there have been no accidents at this location, many advising 
of the lengthy time periods they have lived in the area

The objections refer to the loss of available parking on Brackenhurst Road, which it is advised 
is ‘already under pressure’ and concerns for where residents and visitors will be able to park.  
Further reference made to difficulties when trying to park in the vicinity of the properties 
directly affected by the double yellow lines, particularly those that are disabled or elderly

We are all aware of the bend in the road. If cars are parked, people tend to drive with caution 
the same as they would on the approach to a bend .Therefore it is not practical and most 
certainly not cost effective. 

Brackenhurst Road is a quiet street, it is not used as a short cut, nor does it contain any shops 
or services. It could be argued that in fact the instalment of double yellow lines could cause 
cars to approach the corner at an increased speed than at present. 

What is the justification for the expense? 

It is hard enough to park in this road when I visit my friends. It would be move useful to make it 
a one way street. 

Why, when 2 residents requested these, that the rest of the residents were not consulted.   
The Councils “Statement of Reasons” says that local residents have raised concerns caused 
by drivers parking at junctions and all day commuter parking.  There is no problem with 
commuters in Brackenhurst Road and the proposals are for the bend in the road not a 
junction.  We have been informed by the local Councillor, who sponsored this proposal, that 2 
residents had asked for double yellow lines on the bend.  We have canvassed the street and 
forty six (46) households are against the proposals and only six (6) in favour.
Because of the limited sight-line on the inside of the bend, all vehicles have to negotiate it 
slowly irrespective of whether vehicles are parked on the bend or not.  The reason people park 
on the bend is because there is nowhere else to park, due to the number of vehicles owned by 
the residents and the high number of frontages converted to dropped kerbs.  The same reason 
that people have park opposite each other and so need to have two wheels on the pedestrian 
footpath to allow vehicles to pass down the centre of the road.  None of which is strictly correct 
but is allowed, and sometimes encouraged, by the Council.  
As it is a 90’ corner with cars parked on the inside of the bend it forces cars to slow down and 
take the corner with care, hence no accidents; also with the provision of dropped kerbs around 
the outside of the corner there is only 1 space within the bend for a car to park, so there is 
usually plenty of space for cars to pass each other safely;

The inner side of the bend (odd number houses) is basically the ONLY area where a few 
“guest” parking slots are ever available – essential unless Brackenhurst is to become a no-visit 
ghetto. These additional parking restrictions will clearly cause significant concern for locals as 
cars will inevitably park where they can – blocking homeowners frontages where no drives 
exist , and when these are all taken, parking across driveways with dropped access. The 
council would be better served spending our rates on “sponsoring” more off road driveways (ie 
reducing the cost for dropped kerb access), as these clearly remove two cars from parking 
requirement per household – normally enough for even modern families. Dropped kerb 
driveways are also self managing ……. In that only guests or deliveries to that property are 
accepted. It is great to see that local Coventry councillors are keen to consider local issues 
and appear driven to resolve them. 

Objection The petition has 130 signatures, some of the petitioners have also sent in individual objections 
Page 41



10

19 
(Petition)

which are considered above. The petition is sponsored by Councillor Birdi.  The petition 
advises ‘ we call on Coventry City Council to:

1. Reject the proposal and remove Brackenhurst Road from the proposed TRO published 
on 17th November 2017

2. Fully consult with local residents before any future proposals are published

Support 1

The Highway Code clearly states "You must park at least 20 feet and 6 metres from the corner 
but more space is better.  This will allow enough room for drivers to make turns and for drivers 
to position themselves to share the road with you".  "Never park on a curve, hill or anywhere 
you do not have a clear view for at least 125 meters in both directions."

Clearly when drivers park in the middle of the bend, halfway on the road and pavement, you 
cannot see round a corner and this makes this a very bad blind bend.

It's ok for certain residents to object as they are more concerned with the 7 to 8 parking 
spaces less for their friends and family to park.

I worry if the fire brigade try to get round the bend when cars and vans and parked both sides 
of the road. In my opinion road safety comes before parking.

Perhaps if the yellow lines are only applied on the side of the road where the cars park (i.e.odd 
house numbers) as there are no houses here.  This is where the problem lies. I am still very 
committed to having yellow lines perhaps this would be a compromise.

Response 
to 

objection

The proposed double yellow lines were to prevent parking on the bend, in response to safety 
concerns raised by a Councillor on behalf of constituents.  As the Highway Code (243) states 
‘Do not stop or park on a bend’ and the location is a 90’ bend, the proposal was advertised.  
The Council undertakes additional measures to advise of proposed waiting restrictions, by 
writing to directly affected residents, this measure is not a requirement of the TRO process 
and ensures that residents are made aware of any proposals so that they have the opportunity 
to comment/object.

In this instance many residents have advised that they do not consider the parking at this 
location to be a danger.  The personal recorded injury collision history of this location shows 
that there have been no recorded personal injury collisions in the last 3 years.

The statement of reasons does refer to proposals relating to safety concerns caused by 
drivers parking at junctions and all day commuter parking.  However, this relates to the 
general reason for the introduction of many of the restrictions in the Order; Appendix A of the 
statement of reasons provides more detail for each location and for Brackenhurst Road 
advises double yellow lines are proposed on the bend in response to concerns of residents 
supported by a Councillor. 

Whether parking is prohibited by a TRO or not, a driver should not park in a manner that is 
dangerous or causes an obstruction. 

Making Brackenhurst Road one way is not a proposal that would currently be considered, this 
would be more likely to increase speed on the road as drivers do not have to anticipate traffic 

Page 42



11

travelling in the opposing direction.
 
Recommendation – Do not install restrictions, but continue to monitor and should the Police 
advise of issues relating to dangerous or obstructive parking occurring in this location, new 
proposals be advertised. 

Location 
(Ward) Cheriton Close (Whoberley)

Original 
Request

Request for double yellow lines due to safety concerns raised by residents supported by 
Councillor 

Proposal

Double yellow lines for junction protection at the junction with Torbay Road and in the turning 
area.

Due to the number of objections that have been received (6) many with similar reasons, the 
objections have been grouped together highlighting the main reasons for objecting to the 
proposal.

Objections
20 - 25

The yellow lines at the junction of Torbay Road and Cheriton Close has merit from a road 
safety view point.

The following comments relate to objections to the proposals for double yellow lines in the 
turning head:

The yellow lines at the turning head of Cheriton Close, in an ideal world would be an 
advantage, but with the number of cars in the Close is totally impractical from again road 
safety, this is if the lines were introduced, the vehicles would have to be parked elsewhere, 
with the Close already full, they would have to go onto Torbay Road, a main arterial road of 
the estate. Torbay Road is already very congested and any other vehicles parked would 
potentially increase the hazard of vehicles using this road.

Congestion in the Close is at its maximum during the evening and overnight when residents 
have returned from work. During the day, the Close can have no parked vehicles around at all 
and there is no reduction to free and easy access. 

I have lived in the close for over 40 years and have never seen the drives [in turning area] 
blocked. People do park at the top but not over the drives.

If the restriction goes ahead it would cause extremely limited parking for residents with no 
drive.

Page 43



12

Cheriton Close  

The residents are only able to park on one side of the road due to how narrow it is. A number 
of people have drives which has eased the parking but some still have to rely on parking on 
the road. I usually park at the top [description of personal circumstances & reason for parking 
in this area] 

Some residents have limited mobility and reduced availability of parking near to their homes 
could impact greatly on their ability to get out and about.

In spite of the fact that there are a lot of vehicles in a relatively small amount of space in the 
Close, access for emergency vehicles has been maintained and not impeded in any way

Concern raised in regard to car crime in the area and the increased security when able to 
park where the cars can be seen.

We have never had issues with the parking in the street as the majority of our neighbours 
have respect for one another and work together to make use of the limited parking we have in 
the street.

Four objections include reference to a need for double yellow lines at the junction of Torbay 
and Winsford Avenue due to issues at school times.

Support 2

In regard to the double yellow lines in the turning head, the reason for concern is if an 
ambulance or fire engine is urgently needed what chance have residents at the top of the 
close got of ‘staying alive’.  If an emergency vehicle has to either reverse up or down the 
close (when vehicles are parked in the turning [head] emergency vehicles would have no 
chance of turning round.  Precious minutes or even seconds could mean a loss of life.  
[Reference made to number of elderly residents] 
There is a fire hydrant at the top of the close, car have parked over this, all weekend at times.

Response 
to 

objection

The double yellow lines at the Cheriton Close/Torbay Road junction are proposed in 
accordance with the advice from the Highway Code in regard to parking at a junction.  The 
Highway Code (243) states ‘Do not stop or park opposite or within 10 metres (32 feet) of a 
junction, except in an authorised parking space’.  This is to provide visibility at a junction. 

The double yellow lines have been proposed in the turning head in response to concerns 
about accessibility.

It is noted that drivers tend to park on one side of the road only to assist with access along the 
road, which is a common practise in roads of a similar nature. The turning area is provided to 
enable a vehicle to turn around and vehicles parked in this area can restrict the ease of 
manoeuvring.  

It is not a duty of the City Council to provide on street parking, and it is noted the objections 
received advised that residents are aware of the impact of the parking and park considerately.

Vehicle tracking has been undertaken.  This shows that it is possible to manoeuvre a car in 
the turning head when other cars are parked (diagram 1 below). But that a larger vehicle, 
such as a fire appliance could not (diagram 2 below).

Recommendation – Install restrictions as advertised.  Include the request for double yellow 
lines at the junction of Torbay Road/Winsford Avenue in the next waiting restriction review.    

Page 44



13

Diagram 1 Private car manoeuvring whilst cars parked in turning head

Diagram 2 Fire Appliance manoeuvring in turning head

Page 45



14

Location 
(Ward) Conway Avenue (Westwood)

Original 
Request 

Request for restrictions to prevent commuter parking

Proposal

Prohibition of parking for one hour in the morning and one hour in the afternoon, to 
prevent all day commuter parking. No waiting Monday – Friday, 9.30am -10.30am 
& 3pm – 4pm. 

Due to the number of objections that have been received (5) many with similar 
reasons, the objections have been grouped together highlighting issues raised and 
the main reasons for objecting to the proposal.

Objections
26 -30

The proposed waiting restrictions in Conway Avenue will not solve the problem just 
move it to other roads in the area (Nailcote Ave, Hathaway etc.). Rather than Page 46



15

targeting the offending vehicles it will simply punish local residents.

The problem appears to be inappropriately parked rail users who restrict the width 
of Conway Avenue, preventing utility, service & emergency vehicles having clear 
passage. The proposed scheme will not affect those people parking 
inappropriately, it would be better to penalise the offending vehicles. One assumes 
the proposed parking restrictions will require monitoring, so why not for a trial 
period monitor and target offending vehicles.

It will in many cases make life harder for many residents because many of the 
properties in the road have no suitable off street parking or insufficient parking for 
the vehicles at those properties.  Residents will want to park during the restricted 
times.  It will impact on residents who need careers or have visitors who stay.

[Many of the individual objections detail personal circumstances which advise of the 
adverse effect the restrictions would have on their day to day movements] 

Is this fair that they will be fined just because they want to continue living their lives 
how they have for many years?

The proposal is a response to parking by Tile Hill train station commuters, it is not 
the residents fault.

[Of the] Commuters using the rail network to travel outside of the city, many are 
daytime shoppers that won’t be affected by the proposed restrictions.  These cause 
the difficulties at the Duggins Lane end of Conway Ave.

The parking problem has been exacerbated since the introduction of additional 
double yellow lines on Duggins Lane.  Introducing new restriction will just move the 
problem elsewhere. 

A previous proposal was a residents parking scheme, residents had to fill in a form 
and return it by post. Not everyone received the form, so how can the survey be 
true and why have we not received the same form for this proposal? Different 
rules?

While I am not a fan of the idea of permits, surely this would be preferable to 
waiting restrictions? 

The actual solution to the problem of parking is not to move the problem further 
afield, it is to provide enough parking for those that use the train. 

There are other alternatives that could be implemented, such as introducing an 
overnight parking charge at the station car park. This would deter holiday makers 
travelling to BHX from parking there for a week or two at a time and perhaps free 
up spaces for commuters
 
So when Coventry City council planners look at proposals do they consider the 
effects of the plans before them? In this case obviously not.
It was stated by the councils senior officer that several residents and a local 
councillor have proposed the changes, how many residents have proposed this 
compared with how many proposed a residents parking scheme?
With the parking scheme proposal a certain percentage of residents had to be in 
favour to pass the proposal, is this proposal governed by the same rules?
Why cannot a residents parking scheme be trialled before this more permanent 
scheme? after all it will still need the same manpower to be policed by the council 
in either scheme? 
 
The proposal if installed will reduce the value of properties in the area, will we be 

Page 47



16

compensated for this?
 
Finally have you considered where the commuters are going to park once this 
scheme is enforced? 

The best solution would be to increase the available parking at Tile Hill station, 
either on the field to the north of the railway line or behind the flats to the south of 
the railway line, and charge the railway as they take the commuter ticket revenue.

Residents cars are not the source of the problem we have on our road.  [Can there 
be an] override of these restrictions for residents? 

I realise that in other places in the city residents have permits for their own streets 
and visitor permits, but they often have to pay for those. I would like to maintain the 
right to park in front of our own house with our own cars and have visitor passes to 
use when needed, but I feel it is unfair to require us to pay for these. In summary, I 
would say that I agree with the restrictions if, and only if, residents are able to have 
permits and visitor passes free of charge.

Whilst I acknowledge that the commuter parking is an issue particularly at the 
bottom of the Avenue closest to Tile Hill Station, I feel that a concession should be 
made for the owners of the terraced houses with no off road parking facilities.  
Would it be possible to reconsider the residents parking scheme which was put 
forward some time ago, if not for the whole street, then just for the terraced 
houses?

SUPPORT  
Due to the number of supporting documents that have been received (5) many with 
similar reasons, they have been grouped together highlighting any reasons for 
support of the proposal.

Support
 3 - 6

Advise of support (4) of proposal
Additional comment from 1 of the 4 - action needs to be taken as access through 
this road is continuously hindered due to an overspill of vehicles left by commuters 
using Tile Hill Rail Station. This could lead to serious consequences as emergency 
services may find that they are unable to gain access to residents premises/traffic 
incidents etc

Support 7

Support, but proposal falls short of providing a satisfactory outcome to the 
objective.

Tile Hill Station has seen a huge increase in footfall over the past few years. It is a 
seven day business.  The proposal on restrictions should include weekends, as, 
vehicles are parked in an inconsiderate manner not just during Monday to Friday.

Commuters park their vehicles all weekend and fly out from Birmingham Airport for 
a weekend break. 

Response to 
objections

The proposals are in response to issues raised about commuter parking.  
Preventing parking for two 1 hour periods during the day prevents drivers being 
able to leave their vehicle all day and has a lesser impact on residents than a 
restriction such as double yellow lines.

A possible residents’ parking scheme, which covered a number of roads, has been 
consulted upon twice.  The residents’ parking scheme policy advises that 60% of 
households are required to be in favour of a scheme before it will be progressed.  
An initial scheme was consulted upon in April 2016; the responses in favour of 
residents parking were low.  An amended scheme was consulted upon in 
September 2016, unfortunately, again there was insufficient responses in favour of 
a residents parking scheme.  A street news was issued following each consultation 
to update the residents with the consultation results.

Other types of restrictions, such as prohibitions of parking, do not require a 
Page 48



17

percentage of households to be in favour.  Once a TRO proposal has been 
advertised objections will be considered and the way forward determined.   

Residents with no available off street parking would be greatly affected by the 
proposals.  However, ‘overrides’ would not be provided to these residents, as in 
effect this would be a residents’ parking scheme.  The alternative option would be 
to reduce the restriction so it is not applied to the whole road.  However, any 
vehicle would be able to be parked where no restriction was proposed, not just 
residents.

Recommendation – Do not install restrictions and continue to monitor.  Previous 
residents’ parking scheme proposals consulted upon did not have sufficient 
responses in favour and the response to this proposal also has the same number of 
people advising they object as are in favour.   

Location 
(Ward) Coral Close (Earlsdon)

Original 
Request

Resident raised concerns about obstructive parking, supported by Councillor 

Proposal

Extension to existing  junction protection double yellow lines, extending further into 
Coral Close (approximately 33m)

Due to the number of objections that have been received (8) many with similar reasons, 
the objections have been grouped together highlighting issues raised and the main 
reasons for objecting to the proposal

Page 49



18

Objections 
31- 38

Parking has not been an issue in the Close, if it has it is negligible.

Never had a problem entering or exiting the close. We wish to object to the extension of 
double yellow lines on both sides of the road, this is disproportionate to the number of 
occasions that there are any potential problems.

I would suggest if the double yellow lines are extended as proposed people will just 
park further down the close.

We do not see any reason to change arrangements from those currently in place 

The proposed restrictions will be an inconvenience to most Coral Close residents.

3 objections suggest double yellow lines should only be put on one side of the road (so 
people would be able to park and emergency vehicles can still get down the close). 1 
objection suggests a single yellow lines restriction one side of the road 

One objection advises - the proposal is, to our knowledge, that of one resident who has 
not consulted with other residents and does not represent the views of the majority of 
people living in the Close [they advise have consulted with other residents].

Many residents have family and friends visiting at the weekend.  If people prevented 
from parking at the end nearest to Broad Lane park further up the Close, then there 
would be no space for family and friends, including elderly visitors, to park.  This is a 
serious potential consequence as Coral Close is some distance to any alternative street 
parking, given the existing yellow lines in Broad Lane.  If Coral Close visitors have to 
overspill to other small streets, e.g. Hendre Close, this will just add needlessly to 
parking problems for residents there.

Response to 
objections

The double yellow lines were proposed in response to issues raised regarding parked 
cars causing obstruction.  

Whether parking is prohibited by a TRO or not, a driver should not park in a manner that 
is dangerous or causes an obstruction.

However, the objections received are from the majority of residents on the close 
advising that they do not consider on street parking to be a problem 

Recommendation – Due to the number of objections received, it is proposed that 
the double yellow lines are not installed on Coral Close, but that a consultation is 
undertaken to determine if the majority of residents are in favour of either no 
additional restrictions, or double yellow lines one side of the road.  If the residents 
are in favour on double yellow lines on one side of the road, the proposal can be 
advertised and formal objection invited. 

Page 50



19

Location 
(Ward) Ebro Crescent (Binley & Willenhall)

Original 
Request 

Double yellow lines in turning head to reduce obstruction caused by parked cars

Proposal

Installation of 10m length of double yellow lines at entry to turning head

Objection 39

I am objecting as I feel applying such a change in the small area would be 
insufficient to reducing obstruction by parked cars.  

In fact, I would go as far as suggesting that the proposed changes should include 
applying double yellow lines as shown in the diagram below. [Diagram shows new 
double yellow lines extending from end of existing double yellow lines on eastern 
side of road continuing round to outside no. 2].  If double yellow lines are to be 
placed in the small section mentioned to avoid obstruction by parked cars, then this 
argument surely applies to the areas highlighted in the diagram below also.  

At present, there are only double yellow lines in the areas shown on the diagram.  If 
I draw your attention to section A [refers to section of existing double yellow lines 
on eastern side of road]. When vehicles are parked on the other side of the road, 
this can cause obstruction to large vehicles, which causes the drivers to ascend the 
footpath in order to continue forward.  Hence, I feel the suggested changes are 
insufficient, and incongruent to what is needed to make the road safe for vehicles 
entering and leaving the crescent.

Furthermore by introducing the double yellow lines as proposed it will result in 
additional cars parking outside my house and blocking my drive.  Whilst I 
acknowledge that cars able to park there now, this proposal will magnify the issue 
and make it much worse.  Hence, I believe that double yellow lines should be 
proposed as I have suggested on the diagram below.

I would be willing to withdraw my proposal if the kerb outside my drive, which is 
partly dropped, is extended as this will also mitigate against the double yellows, 
which are being proposed.  I am willing to pay for the kerb drop to be extended.

Until either of my proposals is considered, I formally object.  I am more than willing 
to discuss and work with the council to come up with a solution, which allows the 
proposal as long as it does not impact me.  

Page 51



20

Response to 
objection

The proposal is in response to issues raised in regard to vehicles parking in the 
location where the double yellow lines are proposed, preventing other vehicles 
accessing the turning area (which due to the central grassed area works similar to 
a roundabout). 

The additional double yellow lines should assist to resolve the original concern 
raised.

Drivers should not park over vehicle dropped kerbs and both the Police and 
Council’s Civil Enforcement Officers (CEOs) have the necessary powers to take 
action if a vehicle is parked across a vehicle crossover without the need for a TRO 
or any additional markings.

Recommendation – Install restrictions as advertised and continue to monitor.  

Location 
(Ward) Kingsley Walk (Henley)

Original 
Request 

Residents request for double yellow lines to prevent parked vehicles causing 
obstruction, supported by Councillor

Proposal

Double yellow lines to reduce obstruction caused by parked vehicles.

Objection 40
(5 signature 
letter)

We [residents] strongly object to double yellow lines.  This was tried to be installed 
previously 5 – 6 years ago by [refers to particular people and situation] but denied.  
Once again only that person wants them.  Everyone else does not have a problem. 
There is no obstruction at all.

Objection 41  
(Also signed 
multi signature 
letter)

I don't understand why we have all of a sudden got an obstruction and visibility 
issues when I've lived here for [No.] years and had no problems..we've recently had 
2 scaffolding trucks plus works vans in the street for a few weeks  in Aug./sept..we 
all managed to get round the work vehicles perfectly fine.

[Describes personal issues regarding parking of vehicles and driveway] Parked on 
street for many years..because no one has knocked my door complaining or asked 
us to move the car because they couldn't get through we didn't see we was causing 
an issue..  but we've never to my knowledge in [No. ] years had any damages or 
scratches  to any residents cars from there being a visabiliy issue..so I don't see 
what the issue is..it's not a big street and all residents keep their cars outside their 

Page 52



21

own propertys ..I personally think circle housing should of spoke to all residents not 
just the ones complaining they haven't knocked my door and asked my view..the 
double yellow lines will effect alot of residence so everyones views matters..I've 
had  over a few days a few neighbours approach me over their concerns with the 
double yellow lines and they live either side of my house so it just shows that it will 
effect others not just myself and my nextdoor neighbour..

if your final decision is that we will have the double yellow lines then i am 
concerned if we get too many parking In other sections of the street causing 
problems for other residents but it will be something we will have to see if and when 
it happens..

Objection 42 Although I'm not directly affected by this proposal, I wish to support my neighbours 
who will be directly affected as a result.  The road in question is neither busy nor is 
it narrow. Having been a resident of this cul-de-sac for the last [No.] years, I have 
not witnessed once, an obstruction on this road, if the obstruction was to imply a 
daily or regular instance whereby a vehicle was unable to pass through.
[No.] years of this were on the opposite side at No X, which involved me having to 
frequent the said road. To simply put there are no significant difficulties which might 
be alleviated as a result of the double yellows.

Response to 
objections

The double yellow lines were proposed in response to issues raised regarding 
parked cars causing obstruction.  However, the objections received are from the 
majority of residents whose access would be affected by parking in this area, 
advising that they do not consider on street parking to be a problem. 

Whether parking is prohibited by a TRO or not, a driver should not park in a manner 
that is dangerous or causes an obstruction. 

Recommendation – Do not install restrictions, but continue to monitor and should 
the Police advise of issues relating to dangerous or obstructive parking occurring in 
this location, new proposals be advertised.

Page 53



22

Location 
(Ward) Knoll Drive (Earlsdon)

Original 
Request 

Residents request for extension to double yellow due to concerns regarding safety due 
to parking outside the school, supported by Councillor.

Proposal

Extension of double yellow lines on Knoll Drive east of the junction with Ivybridge Road

Objection 
43 

Writing to object to the double yellow lines being proposed for the short distance on 
Knoll Drive. The yellow lines currently are such a distance around from the junction from 
Ivybridge Road to ensure that the view for drivers is not impeded. The next house down 
on knoll drive already has a white line telling all not to park across their drive. (the road, 
outside of the 10 mins school drop off and pick up is deathly quiet anyhow) the area 
which is proposed for yellow lines is down the side of a house and a little across the 
front of another house with the white lines already. I know no owner has the right to 
park outside their house anyhow so I'm at a loss how any of this deserves your time? 
The time and cost of implementing it? At a time that even our local library has closed! I 
know it is a separate issue but at school drop off time no one pays the slightest notice of 
the lines anyhow. A mockery of the valuable time you and your colleagues are putting in 
now. In the [No.] years I've lived here only once had anyone every enforced it.

Not that it is my concern but leaving parents who do take their children to school by car. 
Leaving them no where to legally park entices them to simply park in dangerous 
places. 

There has been no accidents. And I'm at a loss as to where this idea has come from?
Objection 
44

I object to the proposed new double yellow lines for the following reasons:

1. The small distance of the proposed lines does not justify the council time and 
money to implement

2. I fail to understand the justification of the lines as the proposed site has not had 
any accidents, no need for drivers visibility to be improved or that the area 
needs to be kept clear for access. 

3. If the justification for the lines is in relation to the school parking then the small 
extension of the double yellow WILL HAVE NO IMPACT upon the issue, (which I 
suspect is an issue outside every single school during drop off and pick up 

Page 54



23

times). I live in [No.] Ivybridge Road. The double yellow lines [at the junction] 
have no impact on preventing people from parking there. In the [No.] years I 
have lived here I have only witnessed enforcement of the restrictions once. 
 Parking around schools needs root cause analysis rather than using council 
resources to paint small sections of double yellow lines.

4. Knoll drive is a fairly quiet residential road. There is a small window when 
school-related parking is a frustration, this is between 8.25-8.45 and 3.10-3.30 
during term time only. This is for the duration of 20 minutes in the morning and 
20 minutes mid-afternoon. Totalling 40 minutes a day and only Monday to Friday 
term time. A very small amount of time in the big scheme of the day. 

5. Painting of the double yellow lines in the proposed site will simply push parking 
further down the road and has the potential to cause a number of residents 
further frustration as there is a concentration of drives along that stretch of Knoll 
Drive. That is if people decide to adhere to the waiting restriction. 

6. The proposed site, for the most part, not a resident's drive and therefore there is 
no need for access which could be used for justifying the proposed waiting 
restrictions. It is worth noting that the resident of No 127 Knoll Drive does 
already have a white line painted across the drive. 

I am at a loss to understand why people should be prevented from using such a small 
stretch of road to park their vehicles.

Response 
to 
objections

The extension to the double yellow lines was in response to safety concerns raised by 
residents and supported by a Councillor.  The concern raised was in regard to parking 
occurring on both sides of the road where the double yellow lines currently end.  The 
introduction of the short length of double yellow lines will prevent parking both sides of 
the road.  There is a School Keep Clear marking on the opposite side of the road 
commencing where the new proposed double yellow lines stop.  

The issue of enforcement of the existing double yellow lines has been referred to 
Parking Services 

Recommendation – Install restrictions as advertised.

Page 55



24

Location 
(Ward) Scots Lane/ Christchurch Road (Sherbourne)

Original 
Request 

Double yellow lines for junction protection (Councillor)

Proposal

Double yellow lines for junction protection.

Objection 
45 

While not objecting to the safety aspects of the proposal, I foresee that, just as 
the 20mph speed limit which this area is subject to, due to not being 
patrolled/enforced, this will be another great waste of my council tax, which would 
be better spent on things of benefit to all Coventry council tax payers, libraries, for 
instance!

Response 
to 
objection

The proposal is in response to safety concerns about parking at the junction.

The double yellow lines are proposed in accordance with the advice from the Highway 
Code in regard to parking at a junction.  The Highway Code (243) states ‘Do not stop or 
park opposite or within 10 metres (32 feet) of a junction, except in an authorised parking 
space’.  This is to provide visibility at a junction.  

Recommendation – Install restrictions as advertised

Page 56



25

Location 
(Ward) Clifford Bridge Road/ Bridgeacre Gardens (northern junction) (Wyken)

Original 
Request 

Double yellow lines for junction protection requested by residents due to safety concerns.

Proposal

Double yellow lines for junction protection.

Support 8 

I am delighted to hear that something is finally to be done about the parking and resultant 
visibility problem at this junction. 

However, it will not resolve the whole issue with this junction. At peak times, especially 
during the ’school run’, there is an additional problem/danger for vehicles trying to enter 
Bridgeacre Gardens as others are trying to exit it. Vehicles park on both sides of 
Bridgeacre Gardens as close Clifford Bridge Road as possible and the proposed double 
yellow lines will mean that they can legally park right up to where the new lines will start. 

When vehicles are queueing to exit Clifford Bridge Road they are positioned in the centre 
of the road between the rows of parked vehicles. It is therefore impossible for any 
vehicle, especially delivery vans and trucks to enter Bridgeacre Gardens at these times.  
The result is that the rear of their vehicle projects into Clifford Bridge Road and traffic 
swerves into the opposite lane to avoid the obstacle.

Might I suggest that the double yellow lines are extended into Bridgeacre Gardens for 
around 15/20m and thus provide unrestricted exit from AND access too Bridgeacre 
Gardens. Traffic that is leaving can stay in the left hand lane and vehicles entering 
will have clear access as they leave Clifford Bridge Road. I hope this makes sense and 
believe that it will resolve both issues in one step.

Response 

The proposal is in response to safety concerns about parking at the junction and the 
double yellow lines are proposed in accordance with the advice from the Highway Code 
in regard to parking at a junction.  The Highway Code (243) states ‘Do not stop or park 
opposite or within 10 metres (32 feet) of a junction, except in an authorised parking 
space’.  This is to provide visibility at a junction.  

Recommendation – Install restrictions as advertised and monitor, if following 
implementation it is considered that the double yellow lines need to be extended further 
in to Bridgeacre Gardens, the required legal procedure will be undertaken. 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 Public report
Cabinet Member Report

Name of Cabinet Member: 
Cabinet Member for City Services – Councillor J Innes    29 January 2018

Director Approving Submission of the report:
Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

Ward(s) affected:
All Wards

Title:
Temporary Hackney Carriage Vehicle Plate/Licence(s) 

Is this a key decision?

‘No – Although the matter may affect all Wards in the City, it is not anticipated that the 
impact will be significant’

Executive Summary:

On the 19 September 2011 the Cabinet Member introduced a limit/cap on the number of 
hackney carriage vehicles that could be licensed by Coventry City Council to 859.  Coventry 
City Council currently license this number and therefore two temporary plates/licences are 
required for the Nissan ADV Dynamo vehicle and two temporary plates/licences for the 
London Electric Vehicle Company (LEVC) [formerly London Taxi Company] TX 
manufacturers to assess their newly manufactured vehicles.  

Recommendations:

The Cabinet Member for City Services is recommended to:

Approve that four temporary hackney carriage vehicle plates/licences will be issued for a 
period of twelve months from the point of issue; two for the Nissan ADV Dynamo and two for 
the London Electric Vehicle Company (LEVC) (formerly London Taxi Company) , 

List of Appendices included:

None

Other useful background papers:

None

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?

No

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel
or other body?

No

Will this report go to Council?

No

Page 60



Report title:
Temporary Hackney Carriage Vehicle Plate/Licence(s) 

1. Context (or background)

1.1 On the 19 September 2011 the Cabinet Member introduced a limit/cap on the number 
of hackney carriage vehicles that could be licensed by Coventry City Council to 859.  
Coventry City Council currently license this number of vehicles therefore if Coventry 
City Council wishes to license new vehicle makes and model for a trial period a 
temporary licence/plate would need to be approved.  

1.2 The problems associated with poor air quality and older diesel vehicles are well 
documented. The City Council are keen to support the taxi trade in a movement to 
cleaner vehicles.

1.3 To assist with this, Coventry has recently been successful in a bid for £1.2m from the 
Office for Low Emission Vehicles (OLEV) Taxi Scheme to deliver electric vehicle 
charging infrastructure to the city for electric taxis.  This will deliver up to 39 rapid 
chargers at 50kw over the next 3 years and later this year OLEV will announce top up 
grant funding to support the taxi trade with purchasing purpose built taxis.  

1.4 The London Electric Vehicle Company’s (LEVC) TX is a hybrid.  It uses an all-new 
Volvo three-cylinder petrol engine as a generator for a large battery pack and electric 
motors – allowing a pure-EV range of over 70 miles. It also features six passenger 
seats and is fully wheelchair compatible.  LEVC intend to start a trial of ten of these 
TX’s this summer of which at least one vehicle will be trialled in Coventry.  As previous 
LEVC models the TX has disabled access and the 180 degree turning circle.  

1.5 The Nissan ADV Dynamo is an all-electric vehicle.  There are four variants of their 
vehicle; a private hire vehicle, a private hire vehicle with disabled access, a hackney 
carriage vehicle with disabled access and a hackney carriage vehicle with disabled 
access and the 180 degree turning circle.  Electric Blue provides integrated charger 
and electric vehicle services, powered by renewable energy.  ADV/Electric Blue wish 
to trial two of their hackney carriage vehicles with disabled access and the 180 degree 
turning circle in Coventry.

1.6 Both LEVC and ADV/Electric Blue will source Coventry licensed hackney carriage 
drivers to undertake the trials. 

2.  Recommended proposals

2.1  Proposal

To approve that four temporary hackney carriage vehicle plates/licences will be issued; 
two for the Nissan ADV Dynamo and two temporary hackney carriage vehicle 
plates/licences for the LEVC TX for a trial period only.  Once issued it is proposed that 
theses licences will last for a maximum of 12 months. 

3.    Results of Consultation Undertaken

None

4. Timetable for implementing these decisions

Subject to approval of the recommendations this will commence immediately.

Page 61



5.   Comments from Director of Finance and Corporate Services

5.1  Financial implications

Taxi Licensing is a ring fenced budget within the Place Directorate.  The cost will be paid 
by the licensed proprietor.  Any on-going impact will be addressed in future fee reviews.

5.2  Legal implications

The Council is entitled to adopt and maintain policies in respect of taxi and private hire 
licensing.  Such policies should inform and guide decision making and promote 
consistency.  They should not be binding nor should they prevent the exercise of 
discretion in a particular circumstance where an exception may be appropriate.

6.   Other implications

6.1  How will this contribute to achievement of the Council's key objectives / corporate
       priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / Local Area 
       Agreement (or Coventry Sustainable Community Strategy)?

It will help to facilitate improvements in the taxi services available to the people of
Coventry, which will contribute towards ensuring that people in wheelchairs are correctly 
& safely secured in hackney carriages and the taxi drivers licence skills are proficient;  
making the city a safer place. 

6.2  How is risk being managed?

Through established reporting and governance arrangements.

6.3   What is the impact on the organisation?

   None.

6.4   Equalities / EIA 

         Having Coventry City Council licensed drivers suitably assessed as to their driving 
capability and competence in using wheelchairs will have a beneficial effect on 
passengers and the general public in Coventry.

6.5   Implications for (or impact on) the environment

Licensing non-diesel vehicles will help promote; the reduction in carbon emissions 
from transport, a cleaner environment, and advocate improved air quality. 

6.6   Implications for partner organisations?

Improvements in taxi services will benefit partner and other organisations, in terms of
improving the safety, availability and value for money of taxis in Coventry.

Page 62



Report author(s):

Name and job title:
Mick Coggins, Senior Licensing and Enforcement Officer
Andrew Walster, Director for Streetscene and Regulatory Services

Directorate:
Place

Tel and email contact:
Tel: 024 7683 2297
Email: mick.coggins@coventry.gov.uk

Enquiries should be directed to the above person.

Contributor/approver 
name

Title Directorate 
or 
organisation

Date doc 
sent out

Date response 
received or 
approved

Contributors:
Andrew Walster Director 

Streetscene and 
Regulatory 
Services

Place 24/10/2017 24/10/2017

Michelle Salmon Governance 
Services Officer

Place 26/10/2017 26/10/2017

Names of approvers for 
submission: 
(Officers and Members)
 Cath Crosby Finance Manager Place 25/10/2017 27/10/2017
Tony Johnson Locum Solicitor 

(Regulatory) Legal 
Services

Place 24/10/2017 26/10/2017

Martin Yardley Deputy Chief 
Executive (Place)

Place 25/10/2017 16/01/2018

Councillor J Innes Cabinet Member 
for City Services

- 25/10/2017 16/01/2018

This report is published on the council's website: www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



 Public report
Cabinet Member Report

1

Cabinet Member for City Services 29 January 2018

Name of Cabinet Member: 
Cabinet Member for City Services – Councillor J Innes

Director Approving Submission of the report:
Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

Ward(s) affected:
Cheylesmore, Foleshill, Sherbourne, St. Michael’s, Upper Stoke, Wainbody, Westwood, 
Woodlands, Wyken

Title:
Petitions Determined by Letter and Petitions Deferred Pending Further Investigations

Is this a key decision?

No. This report is for monitoring purposes only.

Executive Summary:

In accordance with the City Council's procedure for dealing with petitions, those relating to traffic 
management, road safety and highway maintenance issues are considered by the Cabinet 
Member for City Services.

In June 2015, amendments to the Petitions Scheme, which forms part of the Constitution, were 
approved in order to provide flexibility and streamline current practice. This change has reduced 
costs and bureaucracy and improved the service to the public.

These amendments allow for a petition to be dealt with or responded to by letter without being 
formally presented in a report to a Cabinet Member meeting.

In light of this, at the meeting of the Cabinet Member for Public Services on 15 March 2016, it was 
approved that a summary of those petitions received which were determined by letter, or where 
decisions are deferred pending further investigations, be reported to subsequent meetings of the 
Cabinet Member for Public Services (now amended to Cabinet Member for City Services), where 
appropriate, for monitoring and transparency purposes.

Appendix A sets out petitions received relating to the portfolio of the Cabinet Member for City 
Services and how officers propose to respond to them.

Page 65

Agenda Item 10



2

Recommendations:

Cabinet Member for City Services is recommended to:-

Endorse the actions being taken by officers as set out in Section 2 and Appendix A of the report in 
response to the petitions received.
 
List of Appendices included:

Appendix A – Petitions Determined by Letter and Petitions Deferred Pending Further 
                       Investigations

Background Papers

None

Other useful documents:

Cabinet Member for Policing and Equalities Meeting 18 June 2015 report: Amendments to the 
Constitution – Proposed Amendments to the Petitions Scheme

A copy of the report is available at moderngov.coventry.gov.uk.

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?

No

Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?

No

Will this report go to Council?

No

Page 66



3

Report title: Petitions Determined by Letter and Petitions Deferred Pending Further 
Investigations

1. Context (or background)

1.1 In accordance with the City Council's procedure for dealing with petitions, those relating to 
traffic management, road safety and highway maintenance issues are considered by the 
Cabinet Member for City Services.

1.2 Amendments to the Petitions Scheme, which forms part of the Constitution, were approved 
by the Cabinet Member for Policing and Equalities on 18 June 2015 and Full Council on 23 
June 2015 in order to provide flexibility and streamline current practice.

1.3 These amendments allow a petition to be dealt with or responded to by letter without being 
formally presented in a report to a Cabinet Member meeting. The advantages of this change 
are two-fold; firstly it saves taxpayers money by streamlining the process and reducing 
bureaucracy. Secondly it means that petitions can be dealt with and responded to quicker, 
improving the responsiveness of the service given to the public.

1.4 Each petition is still dealt with on an individual basis. The Cabinet Member considers advice 
from officers on appropriate action to respond to the petitioners’ request, which in some 
circumstances, may be for the petition to be dealt with or responded to without the need for 
formal consideration at a Cabinet Member meeting. In such circumstances and with the 
approval of the Cabinet Member, written agreement is then sought from the relevant 
Councillor/Petition Organiser to proceed in this manner.

2. Options considered and recommended proposal

2.1 Officers will respond to the petitions received by determination letter or holding letter as set 
out in Appendix A of this report.

2.2 Where a holding letter is to be sent, this is because further investigation work is required of 
the matters raised. Details of the actions agreed are also included in Appendix A. 

2.3 Once the matters have been investigated, a determination letter will be sent to the petition 
organiser or, if appropriate, a report will be submitted to a future Cabinet Member meeting, 
detailing the results of the investigations and subsequent recommended action. 

3. Results of consultation undertaken

3.1 In the case of a petition being determined by letter, written agreement is sought from the 
relevant Petition Organiser and Councillor Sponsor to proceed in this manner. If they do not 
agree, a report responding to the petition will be prepared for consideration at a future 
Cabinet Member meeting. The Petition Organiser and Councillor Sponsor will be invited to 
attend this meeting where they will have the opportunity to speak on behalf of the petitioners.

4. Timetable for implementing this decision

4.1 Letters referred to in Appendix A will be sent out by February 2018.

Page 67



4

5. Comments from Director of Finance and Corporate Services

5.1 Financial implications

There are no specific financial implications arising from the recommendations within this 
report.

5.2 Legal implications

There are no specific legal implications arising from this report.

6. Other implications

6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council's key objectives / corporate 
priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / Local Area Agreement 
(or Coventry Sustainable Community Strategy)?

Not applicable.

6.2 How is risk being managed?

Not applicable.

6.3 What is the impact on the organisation?

Determining petitions by letter enables petitioners’ requests to be responded to more 
quickly and efficiently.

6.4 Equalities / EIA 

There are no public sector equality duties which are of relevance.

6.5 Implications for  (or impact on) the environment

None.

6.6 Implications for partner organisations?

None.

Page 68



5

Report author(s)

Name and job title:
Martin Wilkinson
Senior Officer - Traffic Management

Directorate:
Place

Tel and email contact:
Tel: 024 7683 3265
Email: martin.wilkinson@coventry.gov.uk

Enquiries should be directed to the above person.

Contributor/approver 
name

Title Directorate or 
organisation

Date doc 
sent out

Date response 
received or 
approved

Contributors:
Colin Whitehouse Acting Head of Traffic and 

Network Management
Place 17/1/18 17/1/18

Rachel Goodyer Traffic and Road Safety 
Manager

Place 17/1/18 18/1/18

Caron Archer Principle Officer - Traffic 
Management

Place 17/1/18 18/1/18

This report is published on the council's website: moderngov.coventry.gov.uk

Page 69

file:///C:/Users/cvmwi270/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/D83F4WX2/moderngov.coventry.gov.uk


6

Appendix A – Petitions Determined by Letter and Petitions Deferred Pending Further Investigations

Petition Title (date received) No. of 
signatures

Councillor 
Sponsor

Type of letter to 
be sent to petition 
organiser(s) and 

sponsor
Actions agreed

Target Date for 
Determination 
Letter /
CM Report

23/17 - Improve the Signage and 
Road Safety Markings Outside the 
Entrance to Grange Farm Primary 
School (1/11/17)

203 Councillor 
Blundell Determination

Request for additional double yellow lines at 
Barnack Avenue and opposite Hexworthy Avenue 
(mini-roundabout) to be included in next waiting 
restriction review planned for March.

February

E87 - Fine and Stop Vehicles 
Parking on Pavements (6/11/17) 11 N/A Determination

Actions agreed in response to previous petitions will 
continue to be implemented, namely:

 take action against offending vehicles 
where parking restrictions exist

 support the Police who have the power to 
take action against vehicles obstructing the 
pavement where no parking restrictions 
exist

 implement physical measures to prevent 
pavement parking as part of the verge 
protection programme, based on the priority 
of the scheme and the availability of 
funding

 where a petition is received requesting a 
Traffic Regulation Order for a footway or 
verge parking ban on a specific road, 
investigate the problem and, if action is 
required, schedule any works based on the 
priority of the scheme and the funds 
available

February

E91 Provision of a Zebra Crossing 
on Tile Hill Lane outside West 
Coventry Academy (22/11/17)

658 N/A Determination
No further action proposed. Does not meet criteria 
for Safety Scheme (no personal injury collisions in 
last 3 years in vicinity of requested location).

February

P
age 70



7

E93 (258) Improve Road Signage 
(Give Way to Oncoming Vehicles) on 
Wolfe Road (8/12/17)

6 N/A Determination ‘Give way to oncoming vehicles’ plate to be 
installed. February

54/16: Reduce Speed on Eastbound 
Section of Allesley Old Road from 
Pickford Way to the Junction with 
Grayswood Avenue (9/1/17)

65 Councillor 
Gannon Determination

Speed survey showed drivers were driving slower 
on inbound side. Collisions unlikely to have been 
affected by lower speed limit. Therefore, no change 
to speed limit is proposed. However, a mobile 
vehicle activated sign will be installed. Hedge by 
gap in dual carriageway has also been cut back.

February

E97 – Speed Reduction on Allesley 
Old Road as Vehicles Approach 
Pickford Way Roundabout (1/1/18)

13 N/A Determination

Speed survey showed drivers were driving slower 
on inbound side. Collisions unlikely to have been 
affected by lower speed limit. Therefore, no change 
to speed limit is proposed. However, a mobile 
vehicle activated sign will be installed. Hedge by 
gap in dual carriageway has also been cut back.

February

E95 - Improve Road Markings and 
Dropping Off Facilities Outside 
Parkhill Primary School (17/12/17)

125 Councillor 
Lepoidevin Determination

School-time waiting restrictions, including School 
Keep Clear marking, in place to enable pedestrians 
to cross safely. Therefore, no reduction in extent of 
waiting restrictions is proposed.

February

29/17 - Implementation of Residents 
Parking Scheme on Rowington 
Close and Implementation of 20mph 
zone for Newington Close and 
Rowington Close (15/12/17)

16 Councillor 
Gannon Holding Parking survey to be conducted. April

72/16 -  Residents Parking Scheme 
for Hartlepool Road, Redcar Road, 
Stockton Road and Stoney Stanton 
Road (27/4/17)

145 Councillor 
Welsh Determination

Parking surveys undertaken, criteria met. 
Significant number of households signed petition. 
To commence legal procedure for Residents’ 
Parking Scheme as part of next waiting restriction 
review planned for March.

February

73/16 - Residents Parking Scheme 
for Oldham Avenue between the 
Junction of Arch Road and Hocking 
Road (27/4/17)

46 Councillor 
Abbott Determination

Parking surveys undertaken, criteria met. Sufficient 
number of households signed petition. To 
commence legal procedure for Residents’ Parking 
Scheme as part of next waiting restriction review 
planned for March.

February

P
age 71



8

66/16 - Edyth Road, Request for 
Residents Parking (8/3/17) 50 Councillor 

Abbott Determination
Parking surveys undertaken. Does not meet 
Residents’ Parking Scheme criteria (availability of 
parking).

February

63/16 - Request for Resident's 
Parking Scheme for Freeburn 
Causeway (17/2/17)

44 Councillor 
Mayer Determination

Parking surveys undertaken. Meets available 
spaces criteria. To consult residents to determine if 
60% of households are in favour. If so, will 
commence legal procedure.

February

61/16 - Request for a Single Line 
Outside St Alban's Church, Mercer 
Avenue, Stoke (14/2/17)

84 Councillor 
Bains Determination

Waiting restriction would not resolve issue as 
restrictions would apply to all vehicles. Therefore, 
no new waiting restrictions are proposed.

February

50/16 - Request for St Christian's 
Road to be Included in the 
Cheylesmore Residents Parking 
Scheme (20/12/16)

53 Councillor 
Bailey Determination

Parking surveys undertaken. Sufficient number of 
households signed petition. To commence legal 
procedure for Residents’ Parking Scheme as part of 
next waiting restriction review planned for March.

February

E25 - Permit Parking for Area 
Around Foleshill (25/12/16) 5

Councillor  
Kaur Determination

Parking surveys undertaken. Not all roads meet 
parking availability criteria. Petition does not 
demonstrate any parking concerns on roads which 
met criteria. Therefore, no further action is 
proposed.

February

P
age 72


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Petition - Request for Road Safety Measures for Alderminster Road
	5 Petition - To Request that Coventry Council Landscape the Land at Whitley Common/ JLR Bridge over A444
	6 Petition - Refurbishment of Roads and Pavements on Delaware Road
	7 Petition - CCTV to be Installed at Lentons Lane Cemetery
	8 Objections to Proposed Waiting Restrictions (Variation 5)
	9 Temporary Hackney Carriage Vehicle Plate/Licence(s)
	10 Petitions Determined by Letter and Petitions Deferred Pending Further Investigations

